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THE __ VIIKINSON _ SOCTETY

The Society was formed in 1972 to mect the ne-d for an organisation
to preserve the material and documentary evidence of Broseley's )
industrial past. Since an important part in this industrial past was
played by John Wilkinson, who lived for a time at the Lawns, 1T Was
decided that the organisation should be known as the Wilkinson Society.

The aims of the Society are :

(i) to act as custodian of any relevent material and information and to
make such material and information available to iuterested
individuals and organisations;

{ii) to proaote any relevent prescrvaticn activity and to scsist

: individuals or organisations in such activity vhere deemed
appropriates )

(iii)to provide a link with the cownnitr of Droseley for individuals or
organisations undertalking locsl historical research,

Any available materisl will be added to the existing collection of
usrosele,; and Wilkinson relics at the Lawns, Broseley. This collection
is open to the public on the second Saturday of every month and by
appointment.

Administration of the Society is by an aanuelly elected conulttee.
Membership is open to anyone interested in the Soclety's aims and
activities. These activities include illustrated lectures, sccial
evenings, researching and c¢rtibiting the Collection, field-trips and
coach-tours. Members arc kept informed by a Newsletter, and an annual
Journal presents articles on the history of the Broseley area, John
Wilkinson and incdustrial archacology in general.

Lot e e g ke e, g

NOT'iS AN NEWS

1EE First Year's Acivivities.

A preliminary mecting was held in July 1972 and at the first
general meeting of the Wilkincon Society on August 2nd a comuittee was
glocted &

Pregident

¢ Js Dugdale, IEsq. Chairman : M. Sylvester Esq.
Secreivoay ¢ Cw Fardwick, Tsq. Treasurer : D. Mason, E:£q.
Curatour ¢ R, Pee, DLsg. Committec Members : Messre, Clarke ond
Cragge

Since tuen therc have beon six coumittes neetings, two general
meetings (Oct. 27th - a talk by Sarrie Trinder on John Vilkinson in
ohropshire; and March 9th 1973 - a slide show by Ron liiles on the
Severn Gorge); and a coach-~tour of Uilkinson stes in the Urexham oresz,
organised by Wayne Turner (May 26th). The 1120t LveGeute do - planned
iorodhursday, October 4th, at  'phe Lawns".

- The Socicty has been responsible for erecting o notice-board on the

site of the New Willey ironworks, with the kind permission of
Lord For-sier.

The Collection of Ruvseley and Wilkinson Relics

katerial is constantly heing added to the collcction at thin Lawns.
lirs Pee is listing 21l the exhibits and contributors, and doetells will
appcar in the next issuc of the Journal.



The Journal

It is hoped that the Journl will make = modest coatri™tion 10O
research on the history of the Broseley area, John Wilkinsou and
industrial archaeclogy in gence~al. In this issue “ayne Turner, who is
currently workiug on a biograriny of John Wilkinson, gives an outline-
survey of the great man's life and work; and Ralph Pec, founder member
of the Society und resident at the Lavns, takes us round Wilkinson's
Broseley home. Onc issuc raised is the date Wilkinson toon up reaidence
theres both writers suggest 1763, the year cof his secoud marrisgzc.

In his recent book, "the Industrial Revolution in Shreopshire!

(Phillimore, Chuicrnester), Barrie Trinder states: #Willinson made once of
ais several howes in Broseley. He leased land from Thomaze Stephens in
1778 on vhich he built a new house which he occupled until 18007 (54390

In this issuc of the Jdournal there is alsco the first of a2 gsries o1
selected exiracts on the history of the Broseley arza.

Contributions to future issues of the Journal would b wcleome.
and should be sent to the Editor, N.J. Clarke, Cranloeigh, Litilc weniock,
lelford. (Tcl: Malinslec 4135).




"KING OF THE IRONFASTLIRS™

There are probably more legends surrounding the namc of Iohn
Wilkinson than that of any other industrielist, oither of hils own
tine or since: born in o market cart, latcr a2 discovercr of coal-gas,
coal-tar, the coke-smclting process in iron, inprover of steam—
cngincs, and even (1ﬂ onc Learned encyclopacdia) the bullder of the
famous Iron Bridge! The fact thet Jov of thesce tales nave 2Ny basis
of truth must no% howcver, obscure the fact that Vilkinson's
achievemcnts werc imuacnsc. He was, of coursc, waat wc in Britain

all a Ucharsctcer!s he wes also his own publ¢011j agent and would be
Lr( & lu&b on¢ To (.4.15?L-{§I'L?L— kltﬂ F‘Vl\toﬂgu \,O 1‘—\1(1 forwu\rﬁ;qnt 01911‘10 'to

his inventive genius One notlon that Vilkinson hingclf never

cleimed ¥as the foundation of thce "Wilkinson Sword" Company, a firm
with which h¢ had nothin_. to do, despitce populesr belicof to the

contraryl

thilst romembering the fact that ' ilkinson had an enormous

indu strlql "empire" ~round which hce circuletcd his own coinage
(minted at Soho, not in Proscley, I haston to add), it is vith his
doings in The Broscley nrca that this short article is concerncd.
NCVLrbhulyob, lct us not i@f”(t the "ehiief citics™ of his "Empire",
before looking at his vork in the Proscley rcgion: Bersheus; Bradley,
Hadley, Hollinswood, Sncdshill and Brymbo, vhere he ran ¢xtonsive and
important ironvorks; Castlchead and Brymbo, vhere his agricultmral
inprovements drew forth wuch Contvmporary praisc froa farming expcrts
of the day; his ventMRes in copper and his big lead concerns at
Buckley, and around ljnkvﬂ, Brymto and Mold, as well as at Rotherhithes
nis lHUOruclt sharc-holdinge in threce or four canals, and his b?nkLng

cnterpriscs., Add, tog, thet in his seventics he_ sircd three children
by uLﬁ %{u Kc?p e’ at QNibo Hell end once has at lecest a soncvinat
‘AC.-r & C 1&an .

settling at "Thc Lavns" in Broscley, Vilkinscn had beon an
iron merchant in Cuuburlang and an ironanaster undcer his father at
Bershen. hon he arrived at Broscley in 17,7, it vas to join scveral
Bristel and uElOpSﬂlfb busincssmen in the taking out of = lcase froum
Lord Forester on a furnace site 2t Willoy. This vas confirmed in a
further lease of 1759, vhere it appears that Vilkinson was to be a kind
of technical adviser to a Conpany vhich would spcecialize in the '
manufacture of guns for Board of Ordnsice contreets, Britain having in
the meentine OﬂL to war with Mroncc. It is seid that ' ilkincon

A -
ﬁ?if“} <d Qi” “311\" pariners by Jlforhln“ th%m th t the yicld from the
Lilloey furnace wag! 11kcly To bl Sopgor he whole venturc vas o

wagto Oi uoney: | the partners th(rgfure uola thklr sharcs cheaply. and

gu ickly %o the ironmaster xho tT 1 unes hod g o10 d-qualit
8i ioh qc hed buricd uﬁ Iy, wn sold ?§89 r011t¥
(1nson hod srrived at tilley as Blw dow or)y wlth a EnE1 T

who vas bCLﬂg brought up gl uh1gxuourv but in 17€3 he nmrrlﬁd a
Wroxeter lady of 40 and settled at “Thb Lawns!.

In 1774, Vilkinson patented a new type of cannon-borer, an crgine

with which he could bore iron vith ﬁsioniahwng accuracy. His skill
as a caster and borer brought hin to the notice of Jazies Vatt and the
letter's partner Boulton whon Wilkinson alrceady knev. Wilkinson now

produced a2 cylinder-borcer and, in doing so, prov1dbg Yatt with
cylinders "bored to Truth". This was the angwer to porheps the iiost
aif flculL of Watt's problems, and with this slill the Bros cley iron-—
mastur vas to make hinedf indic spenseble to the Scho partners, who

insic LLd taat all of their cngine parts should be made by, nd bought
ifoﬂ, Wilkinson.

The tuird LWatt cngine vag assoibled at Willey, vwhere wost of thc

parts had becn bored and fasghioncd. Vett hingclf caiie over to lock
over the workwenship snd the setting up of the cnginc, staying with
The

ircmaster et "The Lewnsh, Re cxpresscd is oolﬂW e satlgfaction
with Wilkinson's results and in 1776 the finishcd cngince wag vorking

al whal vilkinson had torncd since his acqguiring Cuﬂt ‘0l in 1763,

the New Villey Coupanj, It vas gct up to blow his blagt-furnacc at
Willcy, the first usce for a stecan~cngine other then raising water,
wizcther for puwiping or fountains or pﬁovlding wetcr for whccls to

work bellovs.

Between 1768 and 1770 Wilkinson sct up a ncw ironvorks, this tiuc
2t Bradlcy, ncar Pilston, in Staffordshirc. Here he had cncthoer
nansion as wcll as coal mincs and blast—furnaces, in vhich he used



Migh+ieotb iron-
t", in this casc
wmd Planct gear.

coke, 28 le had at Birsheom. In +ime, tuls beeane his
vorks. At Bredley in 1782/8 he set up enoticr "five
e steau-povcered forgoe-harmcer, driven by the nev Sur £

Anothcr housc purchasc ves made in 1778/79, this tinc = solitary,
uarine residence et Castlcehcad, near Grange (N. "Lencs.) on s piccc of
narshy land which beecance an island =t high tide.

In 1779, iilkinson's nane appcars as one of the cuicf starej.
holde¢rs in the Iron Bridge project over the River Scvern,; counccting
the two perishes of Bros ClLJ and Madceloey.

In 1787, the iromigstir produced the world's first iron boat; 1t

was a long narrov barge, nade at the Yilley dironvorks endlaunchoed at
the Will&w Vherf to 2 sclute from Yilkinson's Willoy guns. Othcr
such boats appearcd fron © ilkinscn, nostly for usc on the cannl ncar
Bradley .

At about this tinc, too, he completed ihat was surcly onc of his
most gigantic tasks, that o oas ting and neking 40 uiles of cast-1ron
piping for the Paris Vﬂtgrvorkﬂ Vost of thesce pipes wore made &
Willey, where they were talken dovn ' ilkinsonls Tarbach Dinglc tranway
to the wharf on the Scvern ~nd from there to the trans-shipucnt port
of Checpstov. Other pipcs werc nade at Birshen from vwuacnce thoy went
overloand to Choster and froo there by sca to Chepstow.

In the 1790's 'ilkinson's tcrrible fre Lnrlﬂl war took placc with
iig brother, | illisn, =14 onc of the resulbs of this vas that . illian
inforiied Boulton and 'att thet his clder brothoer had becn crccting
Wati-type stear-cngines, not only for hirsclf, but for other cus 0TS
both at houic and sbroad, unfortuﬁ tely without ﬂrg41uLL After 2
loqg, undignificd pericd of wrangling, "ilkinson hed tc pay up, much
to hils annoyance, for, rightly or mr’ntl” ke CQHDlQLrLd that his part
in the cventual success of the stean-sngine had boeen ot least as
importent s Boulton's lLied bocn.

Thc cnd of the century foundéd him spending more and nore tinc
between DBre 61:3 and Lis ncw ircnvcerks (aou”ﬁrc’ in 1792) on the rich

Bryubo Egta 11 Nortli " alcs, not far from Borshan vwhich scaacd to be
QL(llnlzg lﬁ Lportance. It is not surprising, thcrofere, tust in
1800 he Llezscd his Broscley home to John Resc, the fanous Coalport

China nanufacturcr.

In 1804, Sncdsghill and Hollinsvood hnving been relinguished somc
yoars ¢s rjnlgl795/%7/, .11k1n ;01 otgan prouu01nﬂ iron agein in that
arca, on the New Hadley Hetate, acquired in 1791.

By now Vilkinsonws = fothor again: his housckeceper at Bryuabo

Hall pfodthd three children between 1802 2nd 1806. His appointcd
heir, nowever, vas his nephew, Thomas Joncs, provided, of coursc, that
he took the n@a\ of Tilkins \n — %hich he did!l

In 1808, the vdghtiest iron ter of the day dicd at his hotic in
Bradley and hLe was buricd, aftcer soveral ettonpis, in his huge cast—
iron coffin in the front garden of his horic at Costlchead. The grave
vas sur..ountcd by a tell obe lisk, nalso of cast~iron, on vwhich vesg
inscribed his own cpiteph, or at lcast a vatcered-dovn version of the

gsouivwhat vitriolic originnll

In the years betwein 1812 and 1817 the Vilkinson cupire was
brought down in ruins through ugcless, unprofitable lltlﬁ“Eldﬂ,
18T£Llj tiie work cof his hcir and ncphov. Iin 1828, his coffin and
his obelisk vwere TquV\Q to the village of Lindalc, in order to
cxpedite tne salce of his foruer hnousc, and the wnd was complceto.

Sefore his death, Uilkinsoa hed threatcnced his Bra dliy vorkers
that, scven years to the day aftcer his death, he would coue back to
sce his beloved furncoLug pounted on his bl” grey e It is surcly a
testinony to thoe pover of the ian's pcrs nhllt” %o rcad in the faded

press notice of {ulj, 1815, that soveral thousands turncd up to sco
thclr forner squirce and nastor!

Thouas Telford wrote, vhen he went to discuss the plans for the
new Ellesucre Ceanel in Octcocber, 175%: "I had thce support of the great
dohn " ilkinson, King of tho TromiasStorS...oeece. o

wayne Turncr



THE BROSELEY ECOME OF JOHN WILKINSON

John tilkinson vas just uander thirty when he came to Broscley as
a partner in the Neuw Willey Company in 1757, leaving his father and_
younger brother, William, to carry on the ironwvorks at Bersham, His
first wifc, Ann Maudsley, a woman of emple wealth, had died four years
earlier, and his young daughter Mary was in thce care of lir. & lrs.
Flint of Sharewsbury.

He was by no mecans the senior partner in the new Company, but he
was the only working Irommaster among the ten partners and would no
doubt have acted as Manager. Where he stayed or lived in or around
Broseley for the next few ycars is not known, but in 1763 hc married
for the second time, having taken over the New House in Church Streets
lis second wife, kary Lee of Wroxecter, was also a voman of wealth and
in the same ycar he bccame sole owner of the Company.

The New Eouse, now known as The Lawns, was thean over thirty yoars
old, having been built in 1727 by Mr. Steveas, a local minc owncr.
The name znd the Phoenix cubossed on the magnificent lead rain head,
suggest that it vwas built to replece the builder's previous home,

The housc was originally a typical squarc Ceorgian Mansion vith
the usual central front door, approached by a short flight of stcps.
The ground in the front vas generally lower than it is now and vhat is
now a cellar was then a basement with sunken windovs. The arca in
frent of the house was probably bounded, as nov, by a low wall, but
with a single entrance through a pair of drive gates. The present
wall adjoining the road appears to be original, but that separating

the stables and domestic entrances from the froant lawn is part of the
e Tt e - ) - e * * ey
18th century altcrations. Wilkinson provided a ncow pair of iron gatcse

The front door opcncd into a passagce or lobby which, with the main
stair well beyond, divided the housc from front to rcar. Thrce
reeeption rooms of almost cqual sizce occupicd three quarters of the
ground floor, while the remaining quarter accommodatcd what may have
been a2 servants hall and e scervents staircasc dircect to the second
floor. The kitchen, back kitchen, scullery and shoe room appcar to
have been accommodated in a single storey domestic wing on thc north
side of the house, and onc of tvo very smell extensions at thc rear.
The second of these two small extcensions provided whet may have boen
an oirice, ‘lr., Vilkinson's Room' or 'Tho Smoking Room!'. There vas
also a malthouse, a brovhouse and stablces apart from the main structurc,.

With garden, paddocks znd possibly orchards ot the back, it was a
wcll designed, compact and prectical professioncl man's residcnce.
It would undoubtedly have had sn 2ir of solid, homcly comfort typical

o the age.

In spite of extensive alteretions sround the mid 19th century,
many feeiures of the original lsy-out cen still be seen. The
original mnd very finc main staircasc with its tvisted balusters
remeing, s dous the ponclling end besutifully proportioncd overmantlc
1 the onc reception room which has not been altcred. The large
rein-hcad previously montioned has the dete 1727 on the sguare down
gspout ond a lead pump in the celler almost certainly dates from the
time the housc was built, This pump with its wooden piston cen still
bec maede to vwork. That part of the present outhuildings adjoining the

road appears (o be original, os does o small squarc buklding bchind
the latcr extoensions. This ettractive little structure has 2 bulls-
¢yc glass window.

Althoupgh tradition has it that he ad

addcd two new wings, it is
doubtful if ¥ilkinson madc sny cxtensive altoerstions to tho original,
end, 1if he did, they cannot now be treced. The ground floor of onc

of the sumall cxtencions at the back Vas, or later became, a butler's
pantry with a stecl door and berred windovs. These and other
gccurity measurcs have been gtbributced to Wilkinson, but arce much morc
likcly to have becn part of the later alterations. He certainly did,
hoviever, omplog Thomas Farnolls Pritchard, the Shrewsbury architect
vho deslgned the Iron Bridge, to provide a new chimney picce of wood
and marble in the pardlced room.  This chimncy picce can still be scen
tegether with a copy of the original working dresing which ineludes a




ting sheot for Pritchard's threc vorkmcn. There arc signs that the
chimney piece is o replaccment, indicating that the penelling and
overmantle are original,

In 1800 : ilkinson lcased the Nev House to John Rosc, China
Manufacturcr, for uh11%§ guincas per annum, ..'the sald Jehn Roce
paying the whole of the window tex'. Vie nave e copy of the inventory
of ¢ffocts teken over by John Rosce which mentions a beost parlour with
'vwainscotting 211 round from top to bottom of room', and Yo chinncy
piccc and marble stone'. ’

The inventory also mentions o nev grete in the kitchen 'in place
of 2 very old onc now belicved to be in the malthousc', ond in the
garden 'two large furnaces for soft watcer'. Prcswiiably thesc nwere
;ater tanks and tio viry old cast iron tanks still to be scen may well
be those referrcd to.

rL"ﬂ

From the New House Tohn Wilkinson could have scen the glow in
the sky from his furnesces at Willcy and from'mﬂogo at Bradley. It
was neore thaet Brigadicr Marchant de la Houlicre was cntertained vhen
he was 1nvkut1g9t1nﬁ the superiority of British cannon on bchalf of
the French Government; as vas James "att «hen he ves supcrintending
the installetion of one of his first tvo commercial stcam cngincs 2ot
Willey. It EESEIE likely thet the first iron boet wes designca 1in
Mir. Vilkinson's Room' and in his meny ﬁp“lic TiON“ for patcnt rights
‘up to 1794, he styles himedf 'Ironmastcr of Brosoley!.

Although his %illcy worlks werce cclipscd in size by later
entorpriscs and he moved on to morce pretendious houmes, the foundations
of his fortunes viere laid in Jrougl&y, and Villey must have played its
part in the development of his meny improvements to the iron industry.,

The New House vas his home for over thirty of his wmost active
years end the comfortable Georzian Housc scems to have served him vell.

Aftcr = period during w. ich debris from a nearby iron foundry
appears to have reached almost up to the back door, the housc vas
extensively altercd during the mid 19th century. The cnlarged
reception roome and huge kitcheon with its laboraﬁc, and in some weys
LMfTﬂCth 1 cooking arrsngements, the high boundery wells and the

scparation of the main ond domestic cntrances, indicate a uwore formal
vay of 1lifc¢ end a chenge in master and nen reletionship vwhich would
have boen quite forcigh to John ‘11k1m on.,

Similsr festures c
Broscley and shkov somcth
Industiial Revolution.

I
€
1

be secn in other contemporery buildings in
ng of the immediste locel cffccts of tho
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Ralph Pcc



THE _EISTORY OF _THE PROSELEY _ AREA:; _ SELECTED _ EXTRACTS
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(I - THE EARIY VMIDDLE  AGES)

-

he folloving account is from "Shropshire: ite Early History and
Antioguitics" by John Corbet Anderson, first publishcd in 1864 and ro-
published in 1972 by E.J. Morten of Didsbury (pp. 64-65).

"It is conjectured that the following entry in Domesdey refcrs to
Broseley: '"ihe saiac Lelgot holds Bosle.,  Gethne held it, and was a
free wen. liere is i hide geldablc. The 1land is (capable of employing)
ii ox=tcams. In dewcsne is onc (tcam), s~nd (there are) iiii sorfs
end iiii boors, end i radinan, with i1 teem., In King Edward's time tthe
manor) was vworth lés. ld., now 12z, He (Huelgot) found it waste."™ Of
Helgot!s successors not a trace remains,

It 1is preoumed, that the discerning Henry I bestoved the lordship of
Lroseley upon ‘arin de letz, of Lorrainc, from whome it is thought
descended in after times many lords of Broscley; yot it 1s conjecturec.
Certain it is, however, that the FPitz Warine, dc Burwardsley's,
d'Eyton's, de Covenc's and the de Pychford's, =11, at one time or another,
had an interest in the Manor of Troseley, bencath vhome again held
undertenants.

Broseley Church was subject to the mother church of St. Milburg, at
Wenlock, within the bounds of whosc vast Saxon parish it stood. The
date of the foundation of Broseley Church i1s unlmown. In token of its
affiliation, end probably as a condfion of itc origin, the Incumbent was
taxcd with an annual pension of 2s. payable ot the feast of St. Nlcholas,
to thoe wmother church,. No curc of sould vwent vith new foundation, whosc
Incumbent wag usunlly bencficed clsovhere,

In 1291, the church of Burcwardsleye, in the deancry of Wenlock, vwas
valued ot £6.17s.4d. per enn, In 1%41, the parish wes assessed only
428+ to the ninth, [for the growing corn had becn destroyed by teumpests;

o large portion of the parish, oving to the poverty of the tecnents, lay
uncultivated, cte. In 1535, this »referment wag valucd at £8.5s5.8d.
per ann, less Tc.2ds for synodals.

barly Incunbent = William, Parson of Purvardecslcgz, about 1230,!

UeJs CLARKE




